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Baok of China (Hong Kong) Limited (Merger) Bill
Banlk of E2st Asia, Lintifed Bill

At the LegCo Financial Aflairs Panel meeting on 19 June 2001, Members
asked the Administration to scek the views of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal
Data ob the points raiscd by the Assistant Legal Adviser of LegCo and solicitors of the '
banks, as reflested in the exchange of correspondence attachud 1o your letter of 19 June
2001 to me.

‘Fhe Home Affuirs Bucean has consulted the Peivacy Commissioner whose
views are set out in his Jeiter of 21 Junc 2001 addressed to Mr Ng Hon-wah of Home

— Affairs Bureaw {copv attached).

I should be gratcful il you would convey the above information 10

Muembers of the Panel. YM
{Stanley V& ong)

for Secretary for Financial Services
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From the desk of the Commissioner

Government Secretariat Home Affairs Bureay
317 Floor, Southorn Centre
130 Hennessy Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Mr. NG Hog-wah
21 Jupe 2001

Dear Hon-wah,

Bauk of Ching (Hong Kong) Limited (Merger) Bill
The Beak of East Asia, Limited Bill

We refer 1o the LegCo Panel meeting on 19 June 2000, in which the shove
Bills were discussed. Subsequently, wa ate piven o understand by you that further
comments are sought from our Office in the light of the discussion in the Panel oo
clause 8(1) of the 1" and clause 7(1) of the 2 Bill. Having studied the views
expressed by Members end other parties as contained in relevant Dapers, pur forther
comments are pravided as folloves,

As it would be clear to all, the clauses in question are airaed, inter alia, to
prevent pity possible issue from arising under data protestion principle 3 (“DPP3") of
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ondigance (“PDPO™), regarding the disclosure/mansfer of
personal data in connectiop with e proposed merger/acquisition. [n considening
those clauses, we have taken into aceount suck factors as we consider to be relevant,
First, we note that in cach of the 2 cases, the line of business of the resuleant entity
will be essentially the same as that of the criginal entities, The significance of this is
that, so far as enswomers are concemned, the acquisition/merger will enadle them 1o
continue {0 obtain essentially the same servicg as before. Heace, apant from the
eventual transfer of personal dats to the resultant entity (which trznsfer admittedly
comey witlhin e meaning of the ferm “use” as defined in scclion 2(1) ), there is
otherwise likely 10 be fittle or no change in the purpose for which the data are to be
used as brought 2bout by the acqusition/merger (which would not be the case if (he
resuleant entity were 10 engage in a totally differeat business altogether).
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Secandly, we have also taken inbo account the fact that, in cach of the 2 cases,
ke proposed acquisitionfmerger is to involve the data of a substantial nimber of
customers and/or e¢mployess. Toe significance of this js that, the theoretical
slternative yoder DPP3 aof obtaining the “prescribed consent” from e2cht of these
customers and employess is likely to be far less practicable in the present cases than
in, say, another acquisition/merger involving the disclosure/transfer of only a handful
of individugls' data. Thc reason for our view in this regard is related to our
interpretation of the term “prescribed consent™, as explained below.

According to section 2(3) of the PDPO, “preseribed consent” must be both
“express” and “given volaatarily". Aocordmg to our interpretation of the lawer
requirernent, consent is given by a data subject voluntarily only where ke is fiee to
otherwise withhold conseat without any undesirable consequence whatsoever,
Thercfore, in the case of & consent clause being a non-negotiable 1etm of a standard-
form conwact, which contract an individual is required to sign ir order to obtain the
service (especially essential services) being applied for, we would normally be
inclined 10 regard the signing of such contract by (not to menlion the mere issuing of
the relevant terms and conditions t0) the individual a5 not amounting to *'prescribed
consent” on his pan.

Regarding the tequirement for prescribed consent to be express, this implies
that mere silence will not suffice, Accordingly, despite the fact that a bank enstomer
Ay have been asked o raise his objection (if any) to the proposed transfer of his
personal data, the absence of any indication whatsoever from him does not, in law,
constituie “preseribed consent™ on his parr.

it should be emphasized that the legal interpretation adopted by owr Office
notwithstanding, other parties are at liberty to adopr other lines of interpretation as
they may sec proper. However, applying our interpreravion of “preseribed consent”,
we have sexrious doubt as to whether the banks in the preseat cases may be entitied to
rely on “consent” purported to have been obtained previously in the form of standard
terms and conditions of contract. Similarly, we have doubt as to the practicability
for those banks now to obtain prescribed {i.c. express) consemt from each and tvery
custamer,

In view of those considerations, we have not previously objected to the
proposed clauses 8(1) and 7(3), and do not se¢ any significant reason now to change
our view for these cases.

In addition to the above, having now had the benefit ol the views expressed by
LegCo Members and othery parties, we note the coneero about equity of treament. In
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particutar, the point has been raised that the protection avajiable 1 the pardes 10 the
curent transactions may not be lJikevAse available 10 any parties to similar
wansactions in te furure, especially for those for whom the presenting of a Private
Mamber's Bill may oot be an option,

In order 1o address this issue and, moreover, with the view 10 achieving 2
proper belence betweea the economic interests of society and individuals’ privacy
rights, we agree that it will be highly worthwhile, as alveady suggestod in the Panel
meeting, tor the Administration to carry out further study on whether it may be
neeessary of desirable 1o intraduce exemption provisions in the PDPO regarding the
use af personal data jp acquisiion/merger activities under different sitwafions. For
the purpose of such study, we shell be happy 10 make svailable to you owr facther
views on the matter in due course,

Privacy Commissjoncr for Personal Data
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